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RFP No. 900977, Addendum No. 2

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

ADDENDUM No. 1
to

RFP No. 901574
for

Religious Services Program
Specification Clarification/Modification and Recap of the Networking/Bidders Conferences

Held on August 2, 2017 and August 4, 2017
	This County of Alameda, General Services Agency (GSA), RFP Addendum has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail.  E-mail addresses used are those in the County’s Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Vendor Database or from other sources.  If you have registered or are certified as a SLEB, please ensure that the complete and accurate e-mail address is noted and kept updated in the SLEB Vendor Database.  This RFP Addendum will also be posted on the GSA Contracting Opportunities website located at http://acgov.org/gsa_app/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/contractopportunities.jsp.


**REVISED BID DUE DATE**
Please note that Bid Responses are now due on September 11, 2017 by 2:00 p.m.
Alameda County is committed to reducing environmental impacts across our entire supply chain. 

If printing this document, please print only what you need, print double-sided, and use recycled-content paper.

The following Sections have been modified to read as shown below.  Changes made to the original RFP document are in bold print and highlighted, and deletions made have a strike through.

Please see the attached Exhibit D – Religious Services Schedule found in this addendum.
Page 9 of the RFP, Section E (PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS), Item 9 has been added as follows:

9.
Hours of Operation:

a.
Contractor shall have adequate on-site staff to address religious services program needs from 9:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. (Pacific Time), Sunday through Saturday.

b.
Contractor shall have a chaplain (or equivalent) on call 24/7 that can come to the facility in the event that a crisis occurs after traditional hours.
Page 10 of the RFP, Section II.  CALENDAR OF EVENTS, has been modified as follows:
	EVENT
	DATE/LOCATION

	Request Issued
	July 26, 2017 

	Written Questions Due
	by 5:00 p.m. on August 4, 2017

	Networking/Bidders Conference #1

(Online conference option enabled for remote participation)
	August 2, 2017 @ 9:30 a.m.

	at:
General Services Agency 

Room 201, 2nd Floor

      1401 Lakeside Drive 

Oakland CA, 94612

OR remotely @       http://gsaalamedacounty.adobeconnect.com/admin/show-event-catalog

	Networking/Bidders Conference #2
	August 4, 2017 @ 2:00 p.m. 
	at:
Public Health

Redwood Room 

1100 San Leandro Boulevard

San Leandro, CA 94577

	Addendum Issued
	August 23, 2017 August 24, 2017

	Response Due
	September 7, 2017 September 11, 2017 by 2:00 p.m.

	Evaluation Period
	September 7, 2017 September 11, 2017 – October 3, 2017

	Vendor Interviews
	September 28 – 29, 2017

	Board Letter Recommending Award Issued
	November 7, 2017

	Board Consideration Award Date
	November 21, 2017

	Contract Start Date
	January 1, 2018


Note:  Award and start dates are approximate.

Responses to Questions

Q1) Can a SLEB vendor that is not directly providing spiritual and/or religious services or programs in a criminal justice environment, bid as the prime Contractor and subcontract to a vendor that directly provides such services?
A1) Page 5 of the RFP, Section C (BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS), Item 1., states:

Bidder shall be regularly and continuously engaged in the business of providing spiritual and/or religious services or programs in a criminal justice environment for the past two years.  This qualification must be verifiable through the references provided in Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet and/or other submitted documentation.
The above qualification must be met by the prime bidder; it cannot be met by a subcontractor.
Q2) Can the County please advise how best to bid if a bidder is not a SLEB, but works with a SLEB?
A2) The County cannot advise on how a bidder should bid.  Please refer to page 5 of the RFP, (BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS) and page 9 of Exhibit A, (SLEB PARTNERING INFORMATION SHEET).  Bidders should submit all the required information and documents for this RFP in order to have a complete bid.
Vendors that have questions about meeting the SLEB requirement are encouraged to contact:

Linda Moore, Business Outreach Officer

General Services Agency, Office of Acquisition Policy
(510) 208-9717

linda.moore@acgov.org
Q3) Would a bidder be considered local if it has volunteers and an office in Alameda County but is headquartered outside of Alameda County?
A3) In order to be considered LOCAL, the bidder must select the appropriate box on page 3 of Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, Item 10; and must also submit the following as proof of locality:

· Copy of a verifiable business license, issued by the County of Alameda or a City within the County; and

· Proof of six months business residency, identifying the name of the vendor and the local address.  Utility bills, deed of trusts or lease agreements, etc., are acceptable verification documents to prove residency. 

Both the business license and proof of six months residency should identify the prime bidder as the owner of both documents.
Q4) How can a vendor register in the Strategic Sourcing Portal in order to bid on this RFP?
A4) Please refer to page 2 of the RFP, for the Strategic Sourcing Supplier Portal link:  

https://ezsourcing.acgov.org/psp/SS/SUPPLIER/ERP/h/?tab=DEFAULT
Q5) Are bidders able to submit bids before the bid due date? 
A5) Yes.  Bidders can submit bids before the bid due date of September 11, 2017 by 2:00 p.m.  If a bid is submitted and the bidder goes back to view or edit the bid, the bidder must select “Save” and then select “Submit” in order for the bid to be submitted on the EZSourcing Portal.

Q6) Can the County please clarify the correct term to use when addressing the juveniles?
A6) The correct term to address individuals in the facilities would be “client” or “youth.”
Q7) Can the County please provide the age ranges of the current detainee population?
A7) The current youth population consists of 13-19 year olds.  For the new transition aged youth program, there will be a unit dedicated to 18-20 year olds as they will be differentiated from the adolescent group.
Q8) When will the new transition aged youth program begin?
A8) The County is currently in the planning and implementation phase of the program and is anticipating a January 2018 start date.
Q9) Will this RFP program include the new transition aged youth program?
A9) The Contractor will be providing in-facility services to all the youth.
Q10) What is the unit size of the program?
A10) The unit size will be 20.
Q11) Page 5 of the RFP, Section C (BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS), Item 2., states: 
Bidder shall have, at minimum, three staff employed that possess either a college degree or a master’s level theological degree.

Is the County requiring only three staff members?
A11) The County is requiring a minimum of three staff members with advanced degrees, either a college degree or a master’s level theological degree.  The total number of staff needed to provide services should be detailed by each bidder in the Table of Key Personnel and Description of Proposed Services and Program.
Q12) Can the County please elaborate on the extent of services required by staff members, for example, will services include grief counseling and bereavement?
A12) As noted above, the bidder shall have a minimum of three staff members that hold a college degree or a master’s level theological degree.  In regards to the extent of services required by staff members, please see pages 5-9 of the RFP, Section D (GENERAL REQUIREMENTS), Section E (PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS), and Section F (DELIVERABLES/REPORTS).
In particular, page 7 of the RFP, Section E (PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS), Item 1.f., states:

Must have the ability to handle client stress associated to ministering to clients and their loved ones who experience pain, suffering, death and grief.

Q13) Does the County require the Contractor to have any additional staff members?
A13) The need for additional staff members depends on how much coordination and outreach is done to have volunteers and additional resources to bring to the program.  The County does expect the Contractor to have on-call services available (see added requirement on page 2 of this Addendum).  The youths’ spiritual and religious needs should be met.
Q14) Are the Chaplains expected to be full-time or part-time?
A14) There are currently two operational facilities.  The maximum security detention center would need at least one full-time person on staff with possibly two part-time persons, depending on the needs of the youths.  At times, there have been up to one full-time staff and three part-time staff, in addition to volunteers.  
The other component expected of the Contractor is to coordinate the volunteer religious and spiritual activities.  Also, the County has a camp program that is much smaller and does not require a full-time chaplain but does require a dedicated part-time chaplain.

In the future, the County does expect to have a new camp program facility which will greatly expand the services and include a gender responsive component.  At that time, the County will anticipate the need of at least one full-time staff, if not, one full-time and one part-time staff at the new camp.

Q15) Page 7 of the RFP, Section E (PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS), Item 1.d., states: 
Provide any and all requested religious and/or spiritual information and materials (e.g., religious text, scriptures, and/or holy books, etc.).

Will the Contractor be responsible to provide materials at Contractor’s expense?
A15) Yes.  All provided and requested religious and/or spiritual information and materials will be at Contractor’s expense.
Q16) Page 7 of the RFP, Section E (PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS), Item 1.g., states: 
Must have the capacity to deliver services, or coordinate the delivery of services, in any language (e.g., use of a third party interpretation service).


Will the County provide any interpreters?
A16) No.  The Contractor is responsible to coordinate and provide interpreters as needed.  There are bilingual officers at the facilities, but they have other duties and may not be available for interpreting at all times.
Q17) Will the County allow interpretation services by phone?
A17) The phone in the facility is not always available for use and cell phones are not allowed in the units.
Q18) Will the Chaplains have access to use the phones in emergency situations and death notifications?
A18) The County will handle emergency situations and death notifications.
Q19) Page 8 of the RFP, Section E (PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS), Item 3.b., states: 

Provide resources including patient lists according to institutional policy.
Can the County please clarify “patient lists”?
A19) “Patient lists” should be “client lists” and refers to the clients whom the volunteers are meeting with in the facilities.
Q20) What is the current schedule for volunteers by days and hours?
A20) The volunteers are on-site seven days a week, some are formal with a set time of services and some are informal that vary with days and times.  Volunteers are on-site almost every day after school hours (@ 3:00 p.m.).  Please see the attached Exhibit D – Religious Services Schedule found in this addendum.
Q21) Does the County require a chaplain to be on-site with the volunteers?
A21) Yes.  It is required that a chaplain be on-site when volunteers are on-site. 

Q22) Can the volunteers fulfill the chaplaincy staff requirement?
A22) Volunteers can fulfill the hours of religious services but not the on-site staff degree requirement.
Q23) Does the County expect to have the Contractor recruit, train, oversee, and provide annual evaluations for volunteers?
A23) Yes.  The religious volunteer programs is currently overseen by the volunteers and Probation program, and the County will eventually transition the overall religious volunteers program to the Contractor (which will include, but is not limited to, recruiting, interviewing, conduct background screenings, training, scheduling, and providing annual evaluations).

Q24) How often should training occur for volunteers?
A24) Training for volunteers should occur at least once every six months.  There are constant changes in legislations and regulations that impact Probation’s providers and the community, and there is a high turnover of volunteers; volunteers should not have to wait long for training.
Q25) Can the County please clarify the expectations of the volunteers and what needs improvement?
A25) The program has a good pool of volunteers.  But a lot of coordination needs to be done with the volunteers.  It will be better suited to have coordination of the volunteers by the Contractor, who is to be the subject matter expert.  The County would like to have reporting in regards to the volunteers.  For example:  Who is being seen?  How are the youths being serviced?  Is this person the right volunteer to provide the service?  The Contractor shall have volunteers “check-in” with the Contractor and provide outcomes of the results of the volunteered services (e.g., how many youths were seen, etc.).  In turn, the Contractor will compile a synopsis to submit with a monthly report, along with an invoice to the County.
Q26) Page 8 of the RFP, Section E (PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS), Item 5, states:
Develop and maintain proper administration procedures for ACPD in accordance with policies.

Is the County requiring the Contractor to have a Religious Services Policy and Procedures Manual?
A26) No.  The County is requesting that the Contractor have or develop a written policy and procedures in order to administer religious services program for oversight of chaplains, volunteer chaplains, and religious providers as well as how resources are brought in and the coordination of special events.
Q27) Is there an on-site office space available for the Contractor to use?  What equipment, supplies, materials are available for the Contractor’s use?
A27) Yes.  There is an on-site office space, one computer, and one phone available for Contractor’s use.  The Contractor will have access to a photocopier and access to network printers.
Q28) What network will the computer have access to and is there access to the internet and/or Wi-Fi?
A28) The computer is on the Probation Department’s network and there is access to the internet.  There is no Wi-Fi available in the Detention Hall intentionally because of safety and security risks.  The County does not want staff using personal devices when in the units.  However, there is network connectivity available in the religious services office. Adjacent to the visitation area is the office where the clergy currently sits.  The County anticipates to continue to have that space available for the Contractor.  The County does have additional vacant office space in the Detention Hall and office space at the camp for the pastor; office space has already been designated for the Contractor at the new camp.
Q29) Will the County allow the Contractor to bring its own laptop to use in the facility?
A29) The laptop would have to be inspected and approved by Probation Department’s Information Technology Department.  Please note that the on-site office space only has one Ethernet connection.
Q30) Will the Probation Department provide the Contractor with cell phones or pagers since the Contractor is expected to fulfill a 24/7 and 365 days a year on-call availability?
A30) The County will not provide the Contractor cell phones or pagers.  It is the responsibility of the Contractor.
Q31) Can bidders list current County employees as references, for example, someone that is working for the Probation Department or the Alameda County Sheriff’s Office?
A31) Yes.  A bidder may list current County employees as references.  A current reference is one that a bidder has contractual obligations with, while a former reference is one that a bidder no longer has contractual obligations with.  The County will review all references provided and if there are any conflicts, the bidder will be contacted appropriately.
Q32) Page 8 of Exhibit A, (REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION AND SUBMITTALS), Item 5, states: 
Bidders must also a submit a proposed staffing plan for coverage at the Juvenile Justice Center and Camp Sweeny, including after-hours, weekend coverage, and crisis response/emergency situation coverage.

Can the County please clarify the hours required for staffing coverage?
A32) The County is requesting for the Contractor to provide staffing from 9:00 a.m. – 9:00 p.m., Sunday through Saturday (seven days per week).  Most of the youth are in school until about 3:00 p.m.  Therefore, evenings should have more availability to meet with the youth and all day on weekends.  It is a 24/7 operation; a crisis can occur at any time, and the County expects the Contractor to have on-call services available.
Q33) Are the chaplaincy staff required to be on-site during all hours of operation? 
A33) The County is requesting that program staff be on-site from 9:00 a.m. – 9:00 p.m., Sunday through Saturday.
Q34) What are the current chaplaincy services days and hours?  Are there currently Saturday and Sunday services and what are the hours?
A34) Sunday services are provided in the units to the youth; the units are self-contained and are not combined at any time.  For additional information, please see the attached Exhibit D – Religious Services Schedule found in this addendum
Q35) Does the County expect to have one dedicated staff member at the Juvenile Justice Center and one dedicated staff member at Camp Sweeney from 9:00 a.m. – 9:00 p.m., Sunday through Saturday?
A35) The County is not requiring a staff member at both the Juvenile Justice Center and Camp Sweeney for the full times of operation.  The County is seeking to have a dedicated staff member at Camp Sweeney.  The youth of the Camp develop relationships with their Pastors, so it is vital that there are consistent staff members.
Q36) What are the hours the current staff members are dedicating to the program?
A36) There is one staff that is part-time.
Q37) If a staff member is sick or out on vacation, will the Contractor be responsible in finding a replacement?
A37) Yes.  The Contractor is responsible to find a replacement for staff members that are sick or out on vacation.
Q38) What is the population for both the Juvenile Justice Center and Camp Sweeney?
A38) The total population for Juvenile Justice Center and Camp Sweeney is about 100.
Q39) Will the new camp be in the current location?
A39) Yes.  The new camp is on the same campus, but in a new location.  The proposed new site is in the large parking lot area, adjacent to the Fairmont campus.
Q40) What is the capacity of the new camp facility?
A40) The new camp holds up to 120 youths, with separate cottage style dormitories; one dorm for girls and two dorms for boys.  The County is not increasing the general supervision capacity.  The current rate of capacity holds 60 boys; the rate of capacity for the new camp will hold 60 boys and 30 girls.  There will be an additional unit for youths either returning home from Department of Juvenile Justice placement who need extra support in transitioning to aftercare or youths coming home from a longer out-of-state placement.  Also, for the youths in aftercare services, the County will have this safety net for youths who are having some struggles.

Q41) What is the current rate of capacity for girls?
A41) Currently, the County does not have a camp program for girls.  There are girls who require out of home placement, and the County currently sends them out of state or out of the County, which may not be in the best interest for the girls.  The County wants to keep the girls local with providers who can work closely with the families; thus, the County wants a place to provide some robust gender responsive services for them locally.
Q42) Can the County provide the current contract and the structure of the current program? 
A42) The current contract is with Acts Full Gospel, and the term is from July 1, 2017 – December 30, 2017.  More information about the current program can be found in Exhibit D – Religious Services Schedule.  A copy of the contract can be requested by email from:

Lovell Laurente, Procurement & Contracts Specialist / lovell.laurente@acgov.org
Q43) Will the Contractor be required to provide counseling for family members of the youth?
A43) The County would like the Contractor to really be seen as part of the Probation family and the facility’s team.  When there is a death or critical incident, it should impact the full-time/part-time clergy in the same way it impacts Probation staff because of the developed, tight-knit team.
The expectation for the pastoral support in the facility is on a 24-hour on-call basis because of critical incidences that may arise.  In the unforeseen event there is a death in the facility, which has occurred in custody before, that impacts the staff significantly.  Additionally, the staff have a lot of vicarious trauma from the things witnessed and heard from the youth that the staff serves and care about.  The County may ask the Contractor to be available in situations when the staff may be struggling with something.  
As far as family, that really pertains to any situation that might arise through visitation. Family visitation is on the weekends, and often staff may ask the on-site pastor that day to assist.  There are a lot of ceremonies, events, and graduations at the facilities; often times, the family may request to have prayer for the youths which is strictly voluntary.  But, the County would like to have that option available for the families.
Q44) What type of reporting system does the County currently have for the religious services program?
A44) The current system is a very antiquated excel spreadsheet.  This will need to be developed collaboratively with the Contractor (possibly an access database that the Contractor will be required to input data).
Q45) Will the County require new software for reporting results of services?
A45) No.  The County does not anticipate any new software requirements.  The current Contractor provides the County with invoices.  But the invoicing would need to look different with this contract to be able to expand the coordination.
Q46) Does the County have any data on the religious preferences of the youth?
A46) The County does not have any data on the youths’ religious preferences.  Religious preferences are voluntarily provided by the youth and not every individual claims a preference.
The County does encourage the Contractor to engage in an assessment to how best design the program services to fulfill the needs of the youth.  Currently, there are some church groups and faiths that are more consistently present at the facilities than others.  The County is seeking the Contractor to coordinate outreach to fulfill the spiritual and religious needs of the youth and to have individualized needs to be met.
Q47) Does the County require a staff that has a strong background in one particular faith or religiously diverse?
A47) The County does not have a preference in the religious backgrounds of the staff members.  The County is seeking a Contractor to meet the youth’s religious and spiritual needs.  The Contractor should be able to work with the youth in the facilities and also work to support the transition of the youth when they depart from the facilities.  The Contractor should demonstrate how it is has or is able to build a strong network of different religious groups and coordinate efforts to assist in the transitioning of the youth when they depart the facilities.  For example, if a youth is returning home to the City of Antioch, the Contractor should be able to connect the youth to supportive services in the City of Antioch.
Q48) Page 5 of the RFP lists a number of religious faiths and spiritual practices.  Will the County require the Contractor to fulfill the needs of the youth if the Contractor does not have a direct network for any particular religious faith or spiritual practice?
A48) Yes.  The Contractor must meet all the religious and spiritual needs of the youth.  The bidder should provide a Description of Proposed Services and Program that provides all services required in this RFP, either directly or through a robust network of subcontracting, MOUs, or other formalized agreements.  The Contractor will need to reach out to those other faiths and other underserved communities.
If the bidder does collaborate with other partners to create a team, please note that the County is only going to enter into a contract with one vendor—the prime Bidder or lead Bidder.  Therefore, on page 4 of the Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, only the prime or lead should list it “Official Name” and “Federal Tax Identification Number.”  Multiple official names and/or federal tax identification numbers will not be accepted and may lead to disqualification.
Q49) What is the budget for this RFP?
A49) There is no exact dollar amount in mind for this RFP.  Bidders are being asked to provide a cost for their program in order to be competitive.
Q50) What is the success rate of the current Contractor and how satisfied is the County with its current services?
A50) The County does not have a defined measurement of “success” at this time.  The County is looking for more robust oversight and coordination of both volunteers as well as special events.  Additionally having a Contractor that can grow and coordinate the network of providers in order to provide the youth with appropriate referrals, and provide aftercare, which may include following up with the youth and families on those referrals once they have transitioned back to the community.
Q51) Does the County know how many bidders would bid for this RFP?
A51) The County does not know how many bidders will bid on this RFP.  However, a list of responsive bidders can be provided any time after the bid due date.
The following participants attended the Bidders Conferences:

	
	Company Name / Address
	Representative
	Contact Information

	1. 
	Catholic Diocese of Oakland
2121 Harrison Street, Suite 100
Oakland, CA 94612
	Cristina Hernandez
	Phone: 510-267-8379

	
	
	
	E-Mail: chernandez@oakdiocese.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	SubContractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	2. 
	Community Church
1527 – 34th Street

Oakland, CA 94608
	Lawrence VanHook
	Phone: 510-597-2207

	
	
	
	E-Mail: ccc4christ@gmail.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	SubContractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	3. 
	Liberty Church International

27154 Second Street

Fremont, CA 94536
	Bishop Diane Robinson
	Phone: 510-377-4284

	
	
	
	E-Mail: pastordianerobinson@gmail.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	SubContractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	4. 
	Catholic Diocese of Oakland
2121 Harrison Street, Suite 100

Oakland, CA 94612
	Richard Denoix
	Phone: 925-367-5833

	
	
	
	E-Mail: richard_denoix@yahoo.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	SubContractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	5. 
	Prison Ministry of America
8129 Somerset Boulevard

Paramount, CA 90723
	Mark Maciel
	Phone: 562-531-0117

	
	
	
	E-Mail: pmausa03@yahoo.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	SubContractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No


EXHIBIT C

VENDOR LIST

RFP No. 901574 – Religious Services Program
This Vendor Bid List is being provided for informational purposes to assist bidders in making contact with other businesses as needed to develop local small and emerging business subcontracting relationships to meet the requirements of the Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Program: http://www.acgov.org/gsa/departments/purchasing/policy/slebpref.htm.
This RFP Addendum is being issued to all vendors on the Vendor Bid List; the following revised vendor list includes contact information for each vendor attendee at the Networking/Bidders Conferences.
	RFP No. 901574 - Religious Services Program

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Contact Phone
	Address
	City
	State
	Email

	Business Emergency Safety Training
	Erroll Najee
	510-451-2378
	1400 Broadway
	Oakland
	CA
	enajee115@yahoo.com

	Acts Full Gospel Church
	Robert Jackson
	(510) 567-1300
	1034 66th Ave
	Oakland
	CA
	bishop@actsfullgospel.org

	Acts Full Gospel Church
	George Matthews
	(510) 798-0060
	1034 66th Ave
	Oakland
	CA
	georgeamatthews@gmail.com

	Acts Full Gospel Church
	George Matthews
	(510) 414-0147
	1034 66th Ave
	Oakland
	CA
	gmatthews@acgov.org

	Altitudinal Healing Connection
	Kokomon Clottey
	(510) 652-5530
	3278 West St
	Oakland
	CA
	info@ahc-oakland.org

	Bay Area Chaplains
	Michael Lafferty
	(925) 413-3083
	P.O. BOX 523 
	Martinez
	CA
	mlaff@pacbell.net

	Bethany Baptist Church Oakland
	Johnny M. Leggett
	(510) 654-8747
	5400 Adeline St
	Oakland
	CA
	revjmleggett@yahoo.com

	Christian World
	James Brannon
	(925) 455-5551
	3820 East Ave
	Livermore
	CA
	PastorJim@ChristianWorld.org

	Community Church
	Lawrence VanHook
	(510) 597-2207
	1527 - 34 Street
	Oakland
	CA
	ccc4christ@gmail.com

	Cornerstone Fellowship of Livermore
	Josh Jonas
	(925) 447-3465
	348 N. Canyons Pkwy
	Livermore
	CA
	joshj@cornerstoneweb.org

	Diocese of Oakland
	Matt Gray
	(510) 267-5379
	2121 Harrison St
	Oakland
	CA
	mattgray2003@yahoo.com

	Diocese of Oakland
	Richard Denoix
	(925) 367-5833
	2121 Harrison St
	Oakland
	CA
	richard_denoix@yahoo.com

	Diocese of Oakland
	Cristina Hernandez
	(925) 367-5833
	2121 Harrison St
	Oakland
	CA
	chernandez@oakdiocese.org

	Fourth World Prison Ministries 
	Leslie Arroyo
	(925) 479-1414
	6533 Sierra Lane 
	Dublin
	CA
	lkaphil310@gmail.com

	God’s Love Outreach Ministries
	Allen S. Turner
	(925) 570-3282
	851 Rincon Ave
	Livermore
	CA
	Fayvrd@yahoo.com

	God’s Love Outreach Ministries
	Harry Clyde
	(510) 352-6399
	851 Rincon Ave
	Livermore
	CA
	c0484@aol.com

	Liberty Vision Ministries
	Diane Robinson
	(510) 377-4284
	37154 Second St
	Fremont
	CA
	PastorDianeRobinson@gmail.com

	Liberty Vision Ministries
	Peter Robinson
	(510) 377-4284
	37154 Second St
	Fremont
	CA
	pastor.peter.robinson@gmail.com

	Prison Ministry of America
	Mark Maciel
	(562) 531-0117
	8129 Somerset Blvd
	Paramount
	CA
	pmausa03@yahoo.com

	Prison Ministry of America
	Miko Ferdua
	(562) 531-0117
	8129 Somerset Blvd
	Paramount
	CA
	pmausa03@yahoo.com

	Prison Ministry of America
	Carrie Siqueiros
	(213) 216-1487
	8129 Somerset Blvd
	Paramount
	CA
	pmausa03@yahoo.com

	Restoration Outreach Ministries
	Judy Edwards
	(925) 577-4157
	360 Grand Ave, #218 
	Oakland
	CA
	pastoredwards@ymail.com

	Tri Cities Community Center
	Horacio Jones
	(925) 812-0878
	620 Filbert St
	Newark
	CA
	hsj@fbfministries.org


EXHIBIT D

RELIGIOUS SERVICES SCHEDULE
RFP No. 901574 – Religious Services Program
Current Contracted Provider
· Monday – Friday:  9:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m.  Court support for Detainees and families.

· Monday – Friday:  3:30 p.m. – 8:30 p.m.  One on one Spiritual Counseling and Bible Studies.
· Saturdays:  10:00 a.m. – 4:30 p.m.  Visiting Room Spiritual Counseling for Detainees and families.

· Sundays:  8:30 a.m. – 10:00 a.m.  Church Services.
· Sundays:  10:30 a.m. – 4:30 p.m.  Visiting Room Spiritual Counseling for Detainees and families.

· On call 7 days a week and 24 hours a day in case of emergency.
Spiritual Volunteers

· Monday – Friday:  3:30 p.m. – 6:00 p.m. and 6:30 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.  Spiritual counseling and Bible studies.

· Saturdays:  10:00 a.m. – 4:30 p.m.  One on one Spiritual counseling.

· Sundays:   8:30 a.m. – 10:00 a.m.  Church services 

10:30 a.m. – 4:30 p.m.  One on one Spiritual Counseling.
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